## CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, PORTSMOUTH, NH DATE: MONDAY, AUGUST 5, 2024 TIME: 7:00PM

Members of the public also have the option to join the meeting over Zoom, a unique meeting ID and password will be provided once you register. To register, click on the link below or copy and paste this into your web browser

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN eOGphEa4Rxyd-NSk6RNtvg

#### 5:15PM - ANTICIPATED NON-PUBLIC SESSION IS BEING HELD IN CONFERENCE ROOM A

- 1. COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH RSA 91-A:3 II (a)
- 2. CONSIDERATION OF THE ACQUISTION OF REAL PROPERTY WITH RSA 91-A:3 II (d)
- 3. CONSIDERATION OF LEGAL ADVICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH RSA 91-A:3 II (I)

### **AGENDA**

- I. WORK SESSION
- II. PUBLIC DIALOGUE SESSION [when applicable every other regularly scheduled meeting] N/A
- III. CALL TO ORDER [7:00 p.m. or thereafter]
- IV. ROLL CALL
- V. INVOCATION
- VI. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- **VII. ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES** (There are no minutes on for acceptance this evening)
- VIII. RECOGNITIONS AND VOLUNTEER COMMITTEE REPORTS
- IX. PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION (This session shall not exceed 45 minutes) (participation may be in person or via Zoom)
- X. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND VOTE ON ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS

# Public Hearings/Second Reading of Ordinances

- A. Public Hearing/Second Reading of proposed Ordinance amending Chapter 10, Article 5A Character-Based Zoning, Section 10.5A43.33 regarding Building and Story Heights of the Zoning Ordinance (Sample motion move to pass second reading of the proposed zoning amendment to Chapter 10, Article 5A, Section 10.5A43.33 and to schedule third and final reading at the August 19, 2024 City Council meeting)
  - PRESENTATION
  - CITY COUNCIL QUESTIONS
  - PUBLIC HEARING SPEAKERS
  - ADDITIONAL COUNCIL QUESTIONS AND DELIBERATIONS

- B. Public Hearing/Second Reading of proposed Parking Omnibus Ordinance amending Chapter 7, Article III Traffic Ordinance, Section 7.330 A. No Parking; Article III Traffic Ordinance, Section 7.341 Driving on Sidewalk; and Article XI, Section 7.1100 E., Speed Limits: 25 mph Middle Street (Sample motion move to pass second reading and schedule third and final reading at the August 19, 2024 City Council meeting)
  - PRESENTATION
  - CITY COUNCIL QUESTIONS
  - PUBLIC HEARING SPEAKERS
  - ADDITIONAL COUNCIL QUESTIONS AND DELIBERATIONS

#### XI. CITY MANAGER'S ITEMS WHICH REQUIRE ACTION

#### A. CITY MANAGER CONARD

#### City Manager's Items Which Require Action:

- 1. \*Request to Schedule Work Session on Revaluation Thursday, September 5, 2024
- 2. Request to Adopt Local Emergency Operations Plan
- 3. \*Request to Appoint a Motor Vehicle Agent
- 4. \*RFQ #52-24 Municipal Property at 35 Sherburne Road Status Update Recommendations for Next Steps and Policy Decision Guidance Sought
- South Meeting House Next Steps
- 6. \*Request to Schedule a Public Hearing Regarding Supplemental Appropriation for the Hanover Street Garage Project
- 7. Request to Establish Polling Hours for State Primary & Presidential General Elections

#### XII. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Request from Adam, Dean, Joe Leddy, & Jamieson Duston, 48 Maplewood LLC, to install a Projecting Sign at 48 Maplewood Avenue (Anticipated action – move to approve the aforementioned Projecting Sign License as recommended by the Planning & Sustainability Director, and further, authorize the City Manager to execute the License Agreement for this request)

#### Planning Director's Stipulations:

- The license shall be approved by the Legal Department as to content and form;
- Any removal or relocation of projecting sign, for any reason, shall be done at no cost to the City; and

 Any disturbance of a sidewalk, street or other public infrastructure resulting from the installation, relocation or removal of the projecting sign, for any reason shall be restored at no cost to the City and shall be subject to review and acceptance by the Department of Public Works

#### XIII. PRESENTATIONS AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

- A. Email Correspondence (Sample motion move to accept and place on file)
- B. Letter from James Knudsen, Knudsen Burbridge, P.C. regarding Estate of Star C. Johnson, Parcel at Map 232, Lot 25 on Marjorie Street, expressing their intention to donate the parcel to the City (Sample motion move to refer to the Planning Board for report back)
- C. Letter from Derek R. Durbin, Esq., regarding Release of Interest in Map 236, Lot 74 for 75 Longmeadow Lane (Sample motion move to refer to the Legal Department for report back)
- D. Letter from residents of Islington Creek regarding zoning of 361 Hanover Street (**Sample motion move to accept and place on file**)
- E. Letter from Eleanor Bird regarding the loud noises created by the fireworks (Sample motion move to accept and place on file)
- F. Letter and Petitions from Lucille Therrien and residents of Connors Cottage regarding the proposed expansion of the Police Station (Sample motion move to accept and place on file)
- G. Letter from Abigail Gindele requesting the city eliminate mosquito spraying (Sample motion move to accept and place on file)

#### XIV. MAYOR McEACHERN

- 1. Appointments to be Considered:
  - Appointment of Scott Chaudoin to the Recreation Board
  - Reappointment of Deborah Chag to the Trees and Public Greenery Committee
- 2. Resignations:
  - Robin Albert from the Arts and Culture Commission
  - MaryLiz Geffert as an alternate to the Zoning Board of Adjustment

(Sample motion – move to accept with regret the resignations of Robin Albert and MaryLiz Geffert with a letter of thanks and appreciation for their service to the city)

3. \*Status of Indoor Sports Complex (Sample motion – move to refer to the Recreation Board for report back)

#### XV. CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS

(There are no items under this section of the agenda this evening)

#### XVI. APPROVAL OF GRANTS/DONATIONS

- A. \*Acceptance of Great Bay Resource Protection Partnership Stewardship Grant \$10,000.00 (Sample motion move to authorize the City Manager to enter into a grant agreement to accept and expend funds in the amount of \$10,000.00 from the Great Bay Resource Protection Partnership to conduct the Buffer Revival: Enhancing Freshwater Wetland Health and Community Awareness project)
- B. \*Acceptance of NHDES Coastal Program Coastal Resilience Grant \$9,486.00 (Sample motion move to authorize the City Manager to enter into a grant agreement to accept and expend funds in the amount of \$9,486.00 from the NHDES Coastal Program to conduct the Resilient Wetlands: Enhancing Coastal Protection and Water Quality project)

#### XVII. CITY MANAGER'S INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

1. \*Community Policing Facility Update

XVIII. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS INCLUDING BUSINESS REMAINING UNFINISHED AT PREVIOUS MEETING

XIX. ADJOURNMENT [at 10:30 p.m. or earlier]

\*Indicates verbal report

KELLI L. BARNABY, MMC/CNHMC CITY CLERK

# CITY OF PORTSMOUTH



City Hall, One Junkins Avenue Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 kconard@cityofportsmouth.com (603) 610-7201

Karen S. Conard City Manager

**Date:** August 1, 2024

Resolutions:

To: Honorable Mayor McEachern and City Council Members

From: Karen S. Conard, City Manager

Re: City Manager's Comments on City Council Agenda of August 5, 2024

X. Public Hearing and Vote on Ordinances and/or

# A. <u>Public Hearing and Second Reading of Proposed Ordinance Amending Chapter 10, Article 5A – Character-Based Zoning, Section 10.5A43.33 Regarding Building and Story Heights of the Zoning Ordinance:</u>

At the June 3, 2024 City Council meeting, staff brought an amendment to Article 5A Character-Based Zoning, Section 10.5A43.33, seeking clarification from Council on the original intent of this zoning amendment adopted by Council in August of 2023. The amendment pertains to properties that contain at least one acre in size and are located within CD4, CD4W, and CD5 Character Districts and are not located within an incentive overlay district. These properties, through a Conditional Use Permit, may add a story (up to 15 feet in height), a duplex or house building type or a mixed-use building in exchange for providing 50% community space and workforce housing. As currently written, the language could be interpreted to allow the incentive of an extra story for a mixed-used development without residential units by providing only the community space requirement and no workforce housing.

The Council affirmed its intent that only mix-use buildings with residential units that include both workforce housing and community space are entitled to receive the incentive provided in Section 10.5A43.33 and referred an amendment clarifying its intent to the Planning Board.

The Planning Board held a public hearing on June 20, 2024 and did not receive any public comment on the amendment. The Board approved the amendment that clarified the ordinance consistent with the Council's intent and made additional, minor non-substantive edits to further clarify the ordinance language beyond what was referred by City Council.

The Planning Board also had discussion about the 50% community space requirement in Section 10.5A43.33(a). Some members thought this requirement would deter applicants from using the incentive because of the percentage of community space required. The Board did not make a recommendation to the Council on this issue but wanted the Council to be aware of its concerns and discussion on this matter.

At the July 15, 2024 City Council meeting, the Council held first reading and voted to hold a public hearing and second reading at the August 5, 2024 meeting.

I would recommend that the City Council move to pass second reading of the proposed zoning amendment to Chapter 10, Article 5A, Section 10.5A43.33 and to schedule third and final reading at the August 19, 2024 City Council meeting.

B. Public Hearing and Second Reading of Proposed Parking Omnibus Ordinance
Amending Chapter 7, Article III – Traffic Ordinance, Section 7.330 A., No Parking;
Article III – Traffic Ordinance, Section 7.341 – Driving on Sidewalk; and Article XI,
Section 7.1100 E., Speed Limits: 25 MPH – Middle Street:

Attached please find the annual omnibus set of ordinances recommended by the Parking and Traffic Safety Committee to be presented to the City Council. This year's omnibus changes are detailed on the attached sheets, and address amendments to the parking ordinance regarding no parking, driving on sidewalk, and speed limits.

By way of background, on March 29, 2000, the City Council adopted Ordinance #4-2000 under Chapter 7, Article I, Section 7.103 of the Vehicles, Traffic and Parking Ordinance. This ordinance was adopted in order to be more responsive to the changing parking needs of downtown. Before its adoption, it often took three readings of the City Council to simply change a parking space from a 2-hour time restriction to a 15-minute one. This process would often take 3-4 months to complete.

The current ordinance authorizes the Parking and Traffic Safety Committee to recommend temporary parking and traffic regulations to the City Council for its approval in the form of its monthly meeting minutes. Once the Council approves these minutes, the temporary regulations are in effect for a period not to exceed one year. During that year the Council and the public have the benefit of seeing how a temporary regulation works before adopting it as a permanent change to the parking ordinance. These temporary regulations are presented at one time to the Council for its consideration. If adopted, the following sections of the parking ordinance would be amended: Chapter 7, Vehicles, Traffic and Parking, Article III, Traffic Ordinance, Section 7.330 A, No Parking; Section 7.341, Driving on Sidewalk and Chapter 7, Article XI, Speed Limits, Section 7.1100 E, Speed Limit: 25 MPH.

The attached amendments to Chapter 7 for the Council's consideration summarize the temporary regulations implemented by the Parking and Traffic Safety Committee over the past 12 months.

I recommend that the City Council move to pass second reading and schedule third and final reading at the August 19, 2024 City Council meeting.

## XI. City Manager's Items Which Require Action:

#### 1. Request to Schedule Work Session on Revaluation:

I would like to request a work session on Thursday, September 5, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. on the topic of Revaluation. City Assessor Rosann Lentz expects to have data available to brief the City Council by that date and she intends to schedule an additional meeting for the public. She will also make available informational resources online to help taxpayers understand and evaluate their new assessments when they receive them later in August.

I recommend that the City Council move to schedule a work session on the topic of Revaluation on Thursday, September 5, 2024 at 5:00 p.m.

#### 2. Request to Adopt Local Emergency Operations Plan:

I am requesting that the City Council adopt the attached Local Emergency Operations Plan.

The Local Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) establishes a framework for the City and its partners to provide assistance in an expeditious manner in the event of a perceived, potential or actual disaster or emergency. The main body of this plan is a general guide for preparedness, response and recovery that may be applied to a variety of situations.

The purpose of the EOP is to provide strategic and operational guidance aimed at facilitating the delivery of all types of local emergency management assistance to the residents and visitors of Portsmouth and others with whom there are mutual aid agreements/compacts in place, and to help reduce the consequences of disasters and emergencies.

This Plan is the product of a collaboration between multiple City Departments, staff and area service agencies following NH Homeland Security and Emergency Management guidance, and Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) recommendations. The Plan is regularly updated by the Emergency Management Team and State to ensure adequate preparedness and a formal review and update is done every five years. The format of the Plan is consistent with the State of New Hampshire Emergency Operations Plan and the National Response Framework (NRF), using the ESF (Emergency Support Functions) concept and approach.

Upon being implemented by the City, this Plan will provide the basis for coordinating protective actions before, during, and after any disaster. Additionally, this Plan will help coordinate the necessary actions to respond to an emergency and organize the links between local governments, neighboring states, and federal response, and to unify the efforts of government, volunteers, and the private sector for a comprehensive approach to reducing the impacts of emergencies and disasters. The Plan will be reviewed and updated annually, and maintained by the Emergency Management Team for accuracy and to ensure it is still serving the City's planning needs, until its formal review period begins again. This plan needs to be adopted and executed by the City prior to August 31st to comply with the Grant Agreement with NH Department of Safety for funding.

I recommend that the City Council move to adopt the proposed Local Emergency Operations Plan as presented.

#### 3. Request to Appoint a Motor Vehicle Agent:

A Municipal Registration Agent is an appointed Municipal Official who serves as an agent of the State of New Hampshire authorized to process registration and title transactions on behalf of the NH Division of Motor Vehicles (DMV).

Since the departure of former Tax Collector Nancy Bates from the City, Deputy Tax Collector Ed Gioioso has served as the de facto Agent. The DMV has requested that Portsmouth formalize our appointment of this Agent. This is an important step in ensuring our continued service to residents with motor vehicle registrations and title transactions.

We have compiled the required documentation to support the Municipal Registration Agent Application. The final element is for the City Council to approve the appointment of our applicant. Proof of such will complete the requirements of the DMV.

I recommend that the City Council move to approve the appointment of Deputy Tax Collector Edward Gioioso as the Municipal Registration Agent for Motor Vehicles in the City of Portsmouth.

# 4. RFQ #52-24 Municipal Property at 35 Sherburne Road Status Update - Recommendations for Next Steps and Policy Decision Guidance Sought:

In May 2024, the City issued a Request for Letters of Interest and Statements of Qualifications from real estate developers and other entities regarding their capacity to design and construct permanent, below-market rate housing on municipally owned property at 35 Sherburne Road. An internal selection committee was created to support the review and evaluation process consisting of the following staff: Joe Almeida, Peter Britz, Sean Clancy, Jillian Harris, Peter Rice, Howard Snyder, Peter Stith and Shanti Wolph, with legal assistance from Jennifer Smith and Trevor McCourt.

Eight development firms responded to this Request. The submittals were scored using the criteria established in the RFQ which included, among other criteria, experience with below market rate housing and professional qualifications. The four highest scoring firms listed below were invited to participate in interviews held during the second week of July:

- Avesta Housing
- Pennrose
- Portsmouth Housing Authority
- Preservation of Affordable Housing

The purpose of the interviews was to both better understand the capabilities of the four development entities and inform a potential Request for Proposal which would provide greater conceptual consideration for this unique site. The four teams were given questions in advance for consideration and inclusion in their presentation which included:

- Would it be more advantageous for the City to sell the site with housing covenants rather than convey the necessary rights through a long-term lease?
- Would the opportunities for housing at this site be improved if the City allowed the
  existing building to be demolished or is there a reasonable reuse potential for the
  existing building?
- What is the optimal range, mix and/or type of below-market housing to best build community, create financial stability and ensure a long-term successful project?
- If the existing ballfield is impacted, what are other opportunities at this site for recreation and community space?
- Are there any site/utility/transportation or other challenges you identify as important to explore or address early in the process?
- What special considerations in site design and construction do you anticipate due to the proximity to the highway?
- What are potential funding opportunities for projects of this type?

Provided below is housing data from New Hampshire Housing for your consideration as you consider the recommendations which follow and to provide staff with input and guidance moving forward. This data outlines household incomes, income limits and rent limits for housing programs based upon US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) guidelines, all of which are used as guidelines for any federal tax subsidy housing program.

HUD considers the City of Portsmouth in the Portsmouth-Rochester, NH statistical area, and has determined the area median family income (AMI) to be \$131,200. It is noted that the median family income in New Hampshire is \$119,900, with the national AMI at \$97,800. The first table outlines HUD'S income limits by household size based upon the \$131,200 AMI.

Portsmouth-Rochester, NH 2024 AREA PROGRAM INCOME LIMITS						
INCOME LIMIT	1 PERSON	2 PERSON	3 PERSON	4 PERSON		
80% of AMI (LOW INCOME)	\$68,500	\$78,250	\$88,050	\$97,800		
60% of AMI	\$55,140	\$63,000	\$70,860	\$78,720		
50% of AMI (VERY LOW INCOME)	\$45,950	\$52,500	\$59,050	\$65,600		
30% of AMI	\$27,550	\$31,500	\$35,450	\$39,350		

The second table outlines HUD's fair market and rental program limits by household size based upon the same \$131,200 AMI:

Portsmouth-Rochester, NH								
2024 AREA PROGRAM RENT LIMITS								
RENT	EFFICIENCY/STUDIO	1	2	3	4			
LIMIT		BEDROOM	BEDROOMS	BEDROOMS	BEDROOMS			
FAIR	\$1,481	\$1,582	\$2,003	\$2,557	\$2,999			
MARKET								
	\$1,712	\$1,834	\$2,201	\$2,543	\$2,836			
60%	\$1,378	\$1,476	\$1,771	\$2,046	\$2,283			
50%	\$1,148	\$1,230	\$1,476	\$1,705	\$1,902			

The interviews yielded purposeful content and dialogue. Insights gained by the selection committee are provided below as recommendations to, with input and guidance requested from, the City Council at this juncture in the process:

- A Request for Proposals (RFP) is issued to the four interviewed entities.
- The RFP would include a specific request for two conceptual redevelopment options –
  one showing adaptive reuse of the existing building and another showing the
  redevelopment of the entire site without the existing building. Both options must show
  potential opportunities which are sensitive to the context of the site and the
  neighborhood.
- A public outreach and engagement program with area residents will be a critical component of any redevelopment effort for the site. A clearly articulated community engagement plan shall be a required element in submittals.
- Green building/passive house design shall be a desired element in the evaluation of submittals.
- The proposal should clearly describe the mix of housing types to be included (for sale, rental (including mix of bedrooms), mixed income, etc.).
- The City will contract with a third-party consultant with specialized professional services pertaining to the analysis of subsidized housing development proformas.

In preparation of an RFP, and based upon feedback received from the four interviewed teams, we need input and guidance from the City Council on the following:

<u>Disposition of the existing building</u>: Better overall master planning of all components of a new neighborhood could be achieved if the existing building is removed. It would be valuable to review proposals that include removal. Alternatively, there may be grants, tax credit programs, and other funding mechanisms available that could support adaptive reuse of the existing building if it were redeveloped into housing. However, it is not clear if the former school qualifies for these programs. If the building were to remain, how should it be repurposed: for additional housing units, or for neighborhood and community-based uses accessible to the general public?

Mix and Type of Housing: Submittals should include a recommendation regarding the mix and type of housing to meet the community's need for below market housing. Staff recommends that the focus be on rental units only with a mix of income levels with a mix of 1,2 and 3 bedrooms. It would be helpful for proposers to know if there is acceptance for fair market rate housing in the mix that might be required to support/offset housing units at or below 60% AMI.

<u>Additional Municipal Support</u>: Submittals should identify if their proposal is dependent upon financial support from the City.

<u>Ground Lease or Other Ownership Model</u>: Based on the interviews, staff recommends that submittals be limited to proposals which envision a long-term ground lease (a lease over 70 years and typically as long as 99 years is considered as fee simple by financing entities).

Impact on the Softball Field and alternative open or recreational space: Are there any criteria or programming needs for open space that should be suggested or required as part of this redevelopment project? Of note: the second athletic field currently in design with construction set for spring of 2025 will include a softball field.

Staff is prepared to issue an RFP in August should this be the desired path forward.

I recommend that the City Council move to authorize the City Manager to prepare and issue a Request for Proposals to the four entities interviewed which encompasses the feedback received this evening.

#### 5. South Meeting House Next Steps:

The City received a single proposal in response to RFP 58-24 - South Meeting House Reuse. That proposal is from the Schleyer Foundation (Foundation) and includes Chinburg Builders, ARCove Architects, and the Portsmouth Music and Arts Center (PMAC). Please see the attached proposal. The City did not receive a proposal from the VFW. Instead, they provided a letter indicating their decision not to propose on the project.

City staff views the Schleyer Foundation proposal as responsive and strong. The Foundation proposes a significant investment in the historic structure along with an ongoing maintenance program. The proposed re-use supports the City Council's ongoing support of the arts community and includes a well-established partner in PMAC. The proposal team has a history of success, the most recent example of which is the Carey Cottage restoration. City staff conducted an initial interview with the Foundation and team on July 30, 2024 as part of the City's initial due diligence. At this juncture, City staff is looking for confirmation that the City Council will support this proposal in concept.

If the City Council views this proposal favorably, staff will work with the Foundation to develop the legal documents necessary to bring this reuse forward for further consideration by the City Council. Staff further recommends scheduling a public meeting for the Foundation to present its proposal to the community and to gather public input.

I recommend that the City Council move to authorize the City Manager to begin the negotiation of documents necessary to implement the proposal and to schedule a public meeting for the Schleyer Foundation to share its concept with the public and gather input.

# 6. Request to Schedule a Public Hearing Regarding Supplemental Appropriation for the Hanover Street Garage Project:

I would like to request that the City Council hold a public hearing for approval of a supplemental appropriation for the Hanover Garage project at the August 19, 2024 City Council meeting. The Hanover Garage is in year three of a three-year construction project which is scheduled to be complete in August of 2025. An additional \$1 million in funding is needed to complete the project, due to material and labor prices which per contract are adjusted annually, unforeseen conditions encountered during construction, and additional work in support of pedestrian access and traffic flow improvements requested by the City.

Original Contract Sum: \$6,298,192

Change Orders to Date: \$167,052

Current Contract Sum: \$6,465,244

It is anticipated that an additional \$1 million is be needed to complete the renovations. The proposed funding source is the Parking Division's fund balance, which was established to offset the loss of revenue due to construction and to provide contingency funding for project costs. Staff will provide supporting documentation as part of the City Council packet for the August 19<sup>th</sup> City Council meeting.

Currently Parking Fund balance net of FY24 and FY25 budget appropriations is \$3.3 million. The use of an additional \$1 million would leave a balance of \$2.3 million.

I recommend that the City Council move to schedule a public hearing and vote to authorize a supplemental appropriation of \$1 million from the Parking Division fund balance.

# 7. Request to Establish Polling Hours for State Primary and Presidential General Elections:

Attached please find a memorandum from City Clerk Barnaby regarding polling hours for the State Primary on September 10, 2024 and the Presidential Election on November 5, 2024.

I recommend that the City Council move to approve the polling hours as presented below:

- Polling hours for September 10, 2024, State Primary Election be established from 8:00 a.m. - 7:00 p.m.; and
- Polling hours be expanded for the Presidential General Election on November 5, 2024, from 8:00 a.m. 8:00 p.m.

### XII. Consent Agenda:

#### A. Projecting Sign Request at 48 Maplewood Avenue:

Permission is being sought to install two projecting signs at 48 Maplewood Avenue that extend over the public right of way, as follows:

Two signs as follows:

Sign dimensions: 32" x 13" Sign area: 2.8 sq. ft. per sign

The proposed signs comply with zoning requirements. If a license is granted by the City Council, no other municipal approvals are needed. *Therefore, I recommend approval of a revocable municipal license, subject to the following conditions:* 

- 1) The license shall be approved by the Legal Department as to content and form;
- 2) Any removal or relocation of the signs, for any reason, shall be done at no cost to the City; and
- 3) Any disturbance of a sidewalk, street or other public infrastructure resulting from the installation, relocation or removal of the signs, for any reason, shall be restored at no cost to the City and shall be subject to review and acceptance by the Department of Public Works.

### XVI. Approval of Grants/Donations:

# A. Acceptance of Great Bay Resource Protection Partnership Stewardship Grant - \$10,000:

The Planning and Sustainability Department is pleased to announce that the City has been awarded a FY2025/2026 land stewardship grant from the Great Bay Resource Protection Partnership in the amount of \$10,000 for the revitalization and continued stewardship of a freshwater wetland and wetland buffer in Portsmouth. These monies will help restore, maintain, and raise awareness for the importance of vegetated freshwater wetland buffers.

The Great Bay Resource Protection Partnership is a collaboration of conservation organizations in coastal New Hampshire that promotes landscape-scale land conservation and stewardship.

The project titled "Buffer Revival: Enhancing Freshwater Wetland Health and Community Awareness" will establish a 25' vegetated buffer along a freshwater wetland at 850 Banfield Road in Portsmouth. This grant will fund site preparation needed to remove invasive plant species from the existing buffer and prepare the site for new plantings, the purchase of buffer plantings for a section of impaired wetland buffer, and a permanent educational sign. The City has committed to providing \$4,099 in match funds using staff time for planning, labor expenses and outreach efforts. In addition to a revitalized wetland buffer, this area will serve as a

demonstration project for the public to highlight proper wetland buffer stewardship and provide buffer stewardship educational tools.

I recommend that the City Council move to authorize the City Manager to enter into a grant agreement to accept and expend funds in the amount of \$10,000 from the Great Bay Resource Protection Partnership to conduct the Buffer Revival: Enhancing Freshwater Wetland Health and Community Awareness project.

#### B. Acceptance of NHDES Coastal Program Coastal Resilience Grant - \$9,486:

The Planning and Sustainability Department is pleased to announce that the City of Portsmouth has been awarded a FY2025/2026 Coastal Resilience Grant from the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services (NHDES) Coastal Program in the amount of \$9,486 for the revitalization and continued stewardship of a coastal wetland buffer and a freshwater wetland buffer in Portsmouth. These monies will help restore, maintain, and raise awareness for the importance of vegetated wetland buffers.

The New Hampshire Coastal Program administers the Coastal Resilience Grants (CRG) Program, which provides funding for coastal community and habitat resilience projects. For the purposes of the CRG funding opportunity, coastal resilience is the capacity of a coastal community or coastal system to adapt in a changing climate – not only measured by the capacity to "bounce back" quickly from shocks and stresses like storms, but also, and perhaps more importantly, measured by the capacity to "leap forward" by fostering sustained and equitable achievement of community goals and ensuring the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of all peoples and habitats over the long-term.

The project titled "Resilient Wetlands: Enhancing Coastal Protection and Water Quality" will develop professional invasive management, planting, and long-term maintenance plans for the establishment of a 25' vegetated buffer along a coastal wetland at Peirce Island and for a 25' vegetated freshwater wetland buffer at 850 Banfield Road in Portsmouth. This project will directly fund a contract for a qualified landscape and ecological services company for the planning efforts, the design and construction services of two permanent educational signs describing the projects (one for each site), and postcard orders and mailings to all property owners with a wetland or 100' wetland buffer on their property.

In addition to the grant funding, the City has committed to providing \$5,264 using staff time for planning, labor expenses and outreach efforts. These areas will serve as demonstration projects for the public to highlight proper wetland buffer stewardship and provide buffer stewardship educational tools.

I recommend that the City Council move to authorize the City Manager to enter into a grant agreement to accept and expend funds in the amount of \$9,486 from the NHDES Coastal Program to conduct the Resilient Wetlands: Enhancing Coastal Protection and Water Quality project.

# XVII. City Manager's Informational Items:

# 1. Community Policing Facility Update:

City staff are prepared to share a verbal update regarding the proposed Community Policing Facility project.